Minutes

OF THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE LONDON BOROUGH OF BARNET held at Hendon Town Hall, The Burroughs, London NW4 4BQ, on 30 January 2024

PRESENT:-

The Worshipful the Mayor (Councillor Nagus Narenthira)

The Deputy Mayor (Councillor Tony Vourou)

Councillors:

Ernest Ambe Jennifer Grocock Richard Barnes Rohit Grover Zahra Beg Kamal Gurung Andrea Bilbow OBE Lachhya Gurung Rishikesh Chakraborty Marianne Haylett Ross Houston Anne Clarke Pauline Coakley Webb Anne Hutton Philip Cohen Giulia Innocenti Joshua Conway Andreas Ioannidis Sara Conway Humayune Khalick Paul Lemon **Geof Cooke** Alison Cornelius **David Longstaff** Kath McGuirk Richard Cornelius Nick Mearing-Smith **Edith David** Val Duschinsky Michael Mire Paul Edwards Arjun Mittra Claire Farrier Giulia Monasterio Shuey Gordon Alison Moore Eva Greenspan Ammar Naqvi

Matthew Perlberg Alex Prager Simon Radford Barry Rawlings Danny Rich Tim Roberts Ella Rose Gill Sargeant Alan Schneiderman Mark Shooter Caroline Stock **Daniel Thomas** Woodcock-Velleman Lucy Wakeley Emma Whysall Nigel Young Peter Zinkin

Zakia Zubairi

1. OFFICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Worshipful the Mayor paid tribute to the sad passing of former Council Leader and Mayor of Barnet, Brian Salinger in December 2023. Many Members had known Brian and worked with him in some capacity, as he served the borough of Barnet for more than 30 years.

The Worshipful the Mayor informed Council that in 2005, Brian was elected Leader of the Council and during this time he oversaw housing regeneration schemes on the borough's four largest estates, and the Primary Schools Investment Programme which led to a number of primary schools being re-built.

He was first elected a Conservative councillor in 1986, representing Friern Barnet Ward and, after boundary changes, Oakleigh Ward. Prior to becoming Leader, he had also been the Cabinet Member for Housing and Environmental Health.

Brian retired at the end of his mayoral year 2017-2018 as the 53rd Mayor of Barnet.

The Worshipful the Mayor then invited tributes from Councillors Richard Cornelius, Ross Houston, Mark Shooter, Ella Rose, Jennifer Grocock and Alison Moore.

The Worshipful the Mayor then asked the Council to stand for a minute's silence to honour Brian Salinger.

The Worshipful the Mayor informed Council that she had written to the following to congratulate them on their recognition in the King's New Years Honours:

Sir Gerald Maurice Ronson CBE who received the honour of Knights Bachelor;

Antony Kenneth Blackburn (DJ and Broadcaster Tony Blackburn) received an OBE for services to Broadcasting and to Charity;

Martin Henry Charles Russell DL who received an MBE for services to the community in the London Borough of Barnet;

Aryeh Leaman who received an MBE for services to young people and to the community in Hendon:

Barry Flack who received a British Empire Medal for services to the Jewish community in Mill Hill; and

Dr Michael John Worms who received a British Empire Medal for services to the community in Mill Hill.

The Worshipful the Mayor noted that although not a resident of Barnet it should be noted Justin Cohen, News Editor of the Jewish News, son of the late former Mayor and Councillor Melvin Cohen, had received an MBE for services to Holocaust Remembrance and to the Jewish Community.

The Worshipful the Mayor also informed Council of the extremely sad news of the death of our friend and colleague, Deacon Anthony Clarke who was a founder member of Barnet Multi Faith Forum and was always courageous and fearless in speaking out against prejudice and discrimination.

The Worshipful the Mayor noted that the very successful and well attended Holocaust Memorial Event took place on Sunday 28th January 2024 at Middlesex University and expressed her thanks to everyone involved in organising this important event for the Council. She noted that speakers included the Chairman of the Holocaust Educational Trust as well as the Rwanda High Commissioner and heard stories from students who had visited Auschwitz.

The Worshipful the Mayor expressed her pride in announcing that, following their Gold Award at the regional round of the National Concert Band Festival in November 2023, the London Youth Concert Band have been invited to attend the national round later this year. London Youth Concert Band, based in North Finchley, has become the Borough's flagship youth music group.

Finally, the Worshipful the Mayor informed Council of the opening of the new Brent Cross West station that took place in early December last year. The opening is part of the biggest redevelopment and growth programme Barnet Council has ever undertaken and one of the most ambitious in Europe and congratulated everyone involved in making it a success.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillors Elliot Simberg, Sarah Wardle, Dean Cohen, Linda Lusingu and Laithe Jajeh.

3. ELECT A MEMBER TO PRESIDE IF THE MAYOR IS ABSENT

The Worshipful the Mayor was present.

4. WORDS FROM YOUNG PEOPLE IN BARNET

The Worshipful the Mayor invited Kashmala Amin, Avi Aggarwal, Meir Ross and Sejal Bobba, candidates in the current cycle of Youth Parliament and Youth Ambassador elections to say a few words.

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Mittra declared a non-pecuniary interest in items 14.2 and 14.6 by virtue of employment.

Councillor Rawlings advised Council that he would leave the Chamber for the debate on the Deputation as he would be dealing with the asset of Community Value matter.

6. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 17 October 2023 be agreed as a correct record.

7. ANY BUSINESS REMAINING FROM LAST MEETING

None.

8. PUBLIC QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER & PORFOLIO HOLDERS

None.

9. **DEPUTATIONS**

Councillor Barry Rawlings left the Council Chamber for item 9.

Councillor Michael Mire left the Council meeting at 7.45pm.

The Head of Governance advised Council that the deputation had submitted the following supporting statement:

"We would like to address the council about our campaign to Save the Prince of Wales Pub in East Barnet. A pub has stood on this site since 1870 and is now under threat as Stonegate brewery is selling it. We are pleased to be standing alongside a campaign led by our local councillors to maintain this site as a pub and we would like the council to acknowledge the importance of this."

Mr John Ireton was invited to speak on the received deputation.

Members asked questions of the deputation.

Following the questioning of the deputation, debate ensued. Following debate:

Councillor Richard Cornelius (Conservative) moved the following proposal from section 18.8 of the Council Procedure Rules: "To ask officers to prepare a report for the next meeting (of either Council or relevant committee) on the deputation.

Councillor Ross Houston (Labour) moved the following proposal from section 18.8 of the Council Procedure Rules: "To note the deputation and take no further action."

Upon the Conservative proposal being put to the vote, the votes were as follows:

For: 17 Against: 38 Abstain: 1 Absent: 7 Total: 63

The Conservative Group proposal was therefore LOST.

Upon the Labour Group proposal being put to the vote, the votes were as follows:

For: 38 Against: 17 Abstain: 1 Absent: 7 Total: 63

The Labour Group proposal was therefore CARRIED and it was therefore RESOLVED to note the deputation and take no further action.

10. PETITIONS FROM MEMBERS AND THE PUBLIC

None.

11. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE LEADER & PORTFOLIO HOLDERS

None.

12. MEMBER QUESTIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE & CHAIRS OF COMMITTEES

^{*}Councillor Rawlings rejoined the Council Chamber.*

Councillor Rawlings rejoined the Council chamber.

Answers to the questions submitted were provided as a supplementary paper to the agenda.

Supplementary questions were then asked and answered within the allotted time given for the item

13. MEMBER QUESTIONS ABOUT JOINT ARRANGEMENTS & EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

None.

14. MOTIONS (45 MINUTES)

14.1 ADMINISTRATION MOTION IN THE NAME OF CLLR ANNE CLARKE - WELCOMING EXTENSION OF UNIVERSAL FREE SCHOOL MEALS SCHEME AND REQUESTING GOVERNMENT SUPPORT FOR SPECIAL DIETARY REQUIREMENTS

Councillor Clarke moved the motion in her name. Debate ensued.

Votes on the motion in the name of Councillor Clarke were recorded as follows:

For: 39 Against: 16 Abstain: 2 Absent: 6 Total: 63

RESOLVED that:

Council Notes that:

- The positive impact of Universal Free School Meals in state-funded schools has been accepted by all major political parties for almost a decade.
- It was for this reason that Universal Free School Meals in state-funded schools were introduced for Reception Year, Year 1 and Year 2.
- Universal Free School Meals:
 - Reduce the impact of poverty
 - Help families during the cost-of-living crisis
 - Help reduce the impact that the withdrawal of benefits makes to parents who move into employment from unemployment, ensuring that work truly pays.
 - Help educational outcomes.
- That there is currently no additional support for those schools with particular dietary needs, such as Jewish schools, who need to supply kosher food.
- That the current Mayor of London, Sadiq Khan, rolled out Universal Free School Meals in state funded schools in the capital for Years 3-6.

- That the Mayor of London is providing those schools which do require extra support due to dietary requirements, such as Jewish Schools, to supply free school meals to Years 3-6 with additional financial support.
- That the Mayor of London has extended the Universal Free School Meals initiative for Years 3-6 and has extended the additional support to those schools which require it.

Council Resolves:

- To request that Cabinet take on the following actions:
 - To thank all those who worked with the Mayor of London to ensure the original scheme provided extra support for those schools who faced additional financial pressures due to dietary requirements such as Jewish schools, which included the leadership of our local Jewish Schools and councillors from both parties in Barnet.
 - To thank the Mayor of London for extending the scheme for Years 3-6 which will help thousands of Barnet families.
 - To thank the Mayor of London for extending his additional funding for those schools that face an additional financial burden in delivering the initiative for Years 3-6 so that pupils at schools such as Jewish schools can similarly benefit.
- To write to the Secretary of State for Education, Gillian Keegan, on a crossparty basis calling on the Government to match the Mayor's funding offer for Reception to Year 2, including an uplift for those schools facing an increased financial burden in delivering its Universal Free School Meals such as Jewish schools to ensure that this universal scheme is truly universal.

14.2 OPPOSITION MOTION IN THE NAME OF CLLR JENNIFER GROCOCK - BARNET AND LONDON DESERVE BETTER THAN ITS CURRENT POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER

Councillor Grocock moved the motion in her name. Debate ensued. Votes on the motion in the name of Councillor Grocock were recorded as follows:

For: 17 Against: 39 Abstain: 1 Absent: 6 Total: 63

The motion in the name of Councillor Grocock was LOST.

14.3 ADMINISTRATION MOTION IN THE NAME OF CLLR ALAN SCHNEIDERMAN - BARNET COUNCIL TO CONTINUE WITH TACKLING CLIMATE CHANGE

Votes on the motion in the name of Councillor Schneiderman were recorded as follows:

For: 39 Against: 17 Abstain: 1 Absent: 6 Total: 63

The motion in the name of Councillor Schneiderman was CARRIED.

RESOLVED that:

Council notes:

- That the climate crisis is the single biggest policy challenge of today, with the risk that if we fail, this planet will be uninhabitable for future generations.
- The resignation of Chris Skidmore from the House of Commons, former minister for energy and clean growth.
- That Mr Skidmore has resigned over the Government's policy of opening up new oilfields and opposing international organisations' recommendations on how to tackle the climate crisis.
- That Mr Skidmore stated: "Where the UK once led in promoting climate change action at COP26, it now finds itself opposing the International Energy Agency, the UNCCC, the Committee on Climate Change, in promoting the opening of new additional oilfields and licenses for extraction that will not take place at best until decades from now."
- That Mr Skidmore adds "We should be taking the long term decisions for the future of our country that protect our citizens, our economy and our planet, not playing the short-term politics with achieves so little but does so much to destroy the reputation of the UK as a climate leader".
- That Barnet Council is playing its part in reducing the dependency on oil, by rolling out more than 1,000 electric vehicle charging points.
- Barnet Council is continuing this policy despite some industry analysts expressing worries that the postponement of the Government's proposed ban on the sales of new petrol cars would depress demand.
- That it is important that, even if the central UK government signals to businesses and households that tackling change is falling down the agenda, other governmental organisations such as councils need to continue to communicate to employers and households that this issue is important to help drive behavioural change.

Council resolves to:

• That despite the Conservative Government embrace of dirty fuels that put our future at risk and damage the UK's reputation on climate change, to call upon the Cabinet to restate its mission of ensuring we are a Net Zero Council by 2030 and a Net Zero Borough by 2042.

14.4 OPPOSITION MOTION IN THE NAME OF CLLR ALEX PRAGER - DIGITAL BLUE BADGES FOR BARNET

Votes on the motion in the name of Councillor Prager were recorded as follows:

For: 56 Against: 0 Abstain: 1 Absent: 6 Total: 63

The motion in the name of Councillor Prager was CARRIED.

RESOLVED that:

Council Notes that:

- Blue Badges are regularly lost or stolen, and they are an easy target for thieves to steal.
- Counterfeit paper Blue Badges are easily made.
- Over 100 cases of Blue Badge fraud have been investigated by the borough in the past 18 months alone.
- Three officers are employed full-time to investigate Blue Badge Fraud, who could be reallocated to support other CAFT investigations.
- Most cases of Blue Badge fraud do not result in a conviction or a fine.
- The rollout of additional CPZs across the borough alongside the ULEZ expansion is likely to create an increase in Blue Badge Fraud.
- Haringey Council became the first council in the country to introduce Digital Blue Badges in November 2022.
- Since the introduction of the scheme, Blue Badge thefts in Haringey have fallen by 65%.
- The Metropolitan Police reported 528 incidents of Blue Badge thefts, which fell to 185 in the period when the Digital Badges were introduced.
- In recent years Barnet has effectively introduced digital CPZ and pay-anddisplay permits, essentially establishing the infrastructure for digital Blue Badges.

Council Resolves:

- To ask the Cabinet Member for Environment & Climate Change to:
- Instruct officers to explore the implementation of a digital Barnet-focused scheme that also considers those who may not be technologically savvy.
- . Brief members on the progress of any implementation, and
- If the system is to be implemented, report a full business case to Cabinet.

14.5 ADMINISTRATION MOTION IN THE NAMES OF CLLR PAULINE COAKLEY-WEBB & CLLR ZAHRA BEG - LEAVING CARE COVENANT

Votes on the motion in the name of Councillor Coakley-Webb and Councillor Beg were recorded as follows:

For: 39 Against: 0 Abstain: 18 Absent: 6 Total: 63

The motion in the name of Councillor Coakley-Webb and Councillor Beg was CARRIED.

RESOLVED that:

Council Notes:

- All young people who leave care at 16, 17 or 18 are statutorily provided with some support from the local authority. This includes:
 - Being assigned a Personal Adviser to help them in the transition to living independently
 - Support with finding accommodation and with any costs of participating in education, training and employment.
- That given the greater level of support at this crucial stage during the transition of care leavers to adulthood is needed, wider society also needs to play a part.
- The Care Leavers Covenant sets five outcomes across the public and private sector:
 - 1. Care leavers are better prepared and supported to live independently.
 - 2. Care leavers have improved access to employment, education, and training.
 - 3. Care leavers experience stability in their lives and feel safe and secure.
 - 4. Care leavers have improved access to health and emotional support.
 - 5. Care leavers achieve financial stability.
- The Council has an extensive set of provisions available for care leavers including:
 - Woodhouse Road Leaving Care Centre which provides:
 - Support for Employment, Education and Training
 - Support for both physical and mental health and wellbeing through
 - multiagency collaboration and accessibility.
 - Support to live independently through training and the support of Personal
 - Advisors, advocates and mentors.
 - A safe space to meet with other care leavers to celebrate achievements.
 - Council Tax exempt to the age of 25
 - Leaving Care Housing protocol with a commitment to no care leaver being made
 - o "intentionally homeless".
 - Life long offer of support and advice to all Barnet care experienced young people
- The Council is developing a range of projects through its charity "Live Unlimited" and across departments to support care leavers, including work experience, apprenticeships, and training.
- Care experienced people face significant barriers that impact them throughout their lives.
- Despite the resilience of many care experienced people, society too often does not take their needs into account; care experienced people often face

- discrimination and stigma across housing, health, education, relationships, employment and in the criminal justice system.
- Care experienced people may encounter inconsistent support in different geographical areas.
- As corporate parents, councillors have a collective responsibility for providing the best possible care and safeguarding for the children who are looked after by us as an authority.
- That all corporate parents should commit to, hearing the voices of looked after children and young people and to consider their needs in any aspect of Council work.
- That councillors should be champions of the children in our care and challenge the negative attitudes and prejudice that exists in all aspects of society.
- The Council has adopted an approach to equalities is based on the Equality Act.
- Care experienced young people experience multiple disadvantages.
- That people with "protected characteristics" in equalities legislation such as disability or sex are protected by a public sector equality duty that requires public bodies, such as councils, to (a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;
 - (b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
 - (c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.
- Under Section 1 of the Children and Social Work Act 2017:
 - A local authority in England must, in carrying out functions in relation to the children and young people mentioned in subsection
 - (2), have regard to the need (a) to act in the best interests, and promote the physical and mental health and well-being, of those children and young people;
 - (b) to encourage those children and young people to express their views, wishes and feelings; 121
 - (c) to take into account the views, wishes and feelings of those children and young people;
 - (d) to help those children and young people gain access to, and make the best use of, services provided by the local authority and its relevant partners;
 - (e) to promote high aspirations, and seek to secure the best outcomes, for those children and young people;
 - (f) for those children and young people to be safe, and for stability in their home lives, relationships and education or work;
 - (g) to prepare those children and young people for adulthood and independent living.
 - The children and young people mentioned in this subsection are –

children who are looked after by a local authority, within the meaning given by section 22(1) of the Children Act 1989;

relevant children within the meaning given by section 23A(2) of that Act; persons aged under 25 who are former relevant children within the meaning given by section 23C(1) of that Act.

 According to the "Applying corporate parenting principles to looked-after children and care leavers statutory guidance for local authorities" the following functions are functions where consideration of corporate parenting principles should generally apply education, social Care, housing, libraries, leisure and recreation and local taxation collection.

The Children and Social Work Act sets out requirements for the council to comply with

Council Resolves to:

- Lobby government for a change in the law to allow Care Experience to become a protected characteristic under the Equality Act and other legislation so that it will enable this to be a requirement for both the private and public sectors. This would be helpful in such areas as employment for example.
 - o Recognise that care experienced people are a group who are likely to face
 - o discrimination.
 - Recognise its duty to put the needs of disadvantaged people at the heart of decision making through co-production and collaboration.
 - Ensure that future relevant decisions, services and policies made and adopted by the Council should be assessed through assessments to determine the impact of changes on people with care experience.
- Become a signatory to the Care Leavers Covenant.
- Ask officers to explore the implementation of Implements the 5 Part Strategy for Local Authorities enshrined in the Covenant ensuring we commit to, or maintain our present practice, in:
 - Raising awareness of the covenant
 - Council tax exemption
 - Training and employment opportunities
 - Social value policy
 - Economic development
- Continue to proactively seek out and listen to the voices of care experienced people when developing new policies based on their views.
- 14.6 ADMINISTRATION MOTION IN THE NAME OF CLLR RISHIKESH CHAKRABORTY CALLING FOR THE MAYOR TO CONTINUE BUILDING A CLEANER, GREENER, SAFER, FAIRER LONDON

Votes on the motion in the name of Councillor Chakraborty were recorded as follows:

For: 39 Against: 17 Abstain: 1 Absent: 6 Total: 63

The motion in the name of Councillor Chakraborty was CARRIED.

RESOLVED that:

Council Notes that:

- For the last eight years, London has been led by a Mayor Sadiq Khan focussed on making the city cleaner, greener, safer and fairer.
- That this agenda has continued despite:
 - o The challenges of the Covid 19 pandemic to our health and transport systems
 - Boris Johnson's botched Brexit hurting the city economically
 - o A real terms cut to the Metropolitan Police of 27 per cent since 2012
 - o A real terms cut to Barnet Council over more than £100 million since 2010
- That Sadiq Khan as Mayor has brought in free school meals for primary school age children and ensured those with particular dietary needs – such as Jewish schools who require kosher food – receive extra support, and has extended that policy for one more year. This has ensured additional support for more than a dozen schools in Barnet
- That the Mayor has brought in a rate of council house building of a greater magnitude than any time since the 1970s, which, working with Barnet Council, fed through to this local authority recommencing expanding social housing at scale.
- That the Mayor's administration has overseen a halving in the amount of toxic air in central London and a reduction of one third in outer London at a time when the Conservative government is scaling back its climate change ambitions. This has included substantial falls in nitrous oxide in areas such as the Golders Green Bus station and Barnet High Street.

Council Resolves to:

 Request that the Mayor does all that he can to bridge the shortfall in funding for the Metropolitan Police left by Government neglect, estimated by the Police's own analysis as £240 million so that that we can see increased action on crime with results such as to the Clear Hold build pilot that arrested more than 160 suspects.

- Keep transport fares as low as possible to support those hit by the Cost of Living Crisis, including on routes in Barnet
- To continue to support the expansion of the number of electric buses and electric vehicle charging points, despite the Conservative Government rowing back on the electric vehicle agenda, given the impact that this has had on air quality in Barnet

14.7 ADMINISTRATION MOTION IN THE NAME OF CLLR PHIL COHEN - PUTTING BARNET FIRST IN THE FACE OF CONSERVATIVE CUTS

Votes on the motion in the name of Councillor Phil Cohen were recorded as follows:

For: 39 Against: 16 Abstain: 2 Absent: 6 Total: 63

The motion in the name of Councillor Phil Cohen was CARRIED.

RESOLVED that:

Barnet Council notes:

- The latest Local Government Settlement, stating what funding the Conservative government is willing to share with local government, outlines a £406 million cut to the Services Grant for local government.
- That this cut is due to be implemented despite higher-than-expected tax revenues. These higher-than-expected revenues are due to the inflation that followed the Conservative Government's November 2022 budget pulling residents into higher tax bands, causing billions of pounds in additional taxes being levied on individuals.
- That the Government's calculations for how it expects local governments will deliver services to their residents assumes that local authorities will introduce the maximum increase in council tax allowed without holding a local referendum; and that that represents another attack on household finances as families face remortgaging rates which rocketed during the Liz Truss Premiership.
- That there are also freezes to the new Homes Bonus and the Improved Better Care Fund, at a time of significant inflation.
- That Barnet Council has faced real terms cuts of more than £100 million from the Conservative Government since 2010.
- That the Local Government Association estimate that councils will face £4 billion shortfall by March 2025 on Conservative ministers' current plans.
- That the Leader of the Local Government Association, Shaun Davies, described the Government Local government settlement as 'unthinkable' and that "No council is now immune to the growing risk to their financial sustainability.

- That CIIr Barry Lewis, Finance lead for the County Council Network and Conservative Leader of Derbyshire County Council said that the Government's decision on local Government funding was ' bitterly disappointing' and that 'councils will have no choice but to implement more severe reductions to services.'
- The Conservative Leader of Surrey County Council, Tim Oliver, has described the latest Government local Government settlement as 'worse than austerity'.
- That Brent Conservatives joined with Brent Liberal Democrats, joined with the Brent Labour administration in stating that the latest settlement will 'do little to address the pressures than council are facing' and how 'disappointed' they are that the Government have 'failed to refer to the long-standing concerns made by local authorities concerning the surety of long-term funding or the immediate impact of historically high inflation rates.'
- That Brent Conservatives, alongside their Labour and Liberal Democrat colleagues, called on the Government to review its Local Government funding settlements as the result of its current policy are 'deep cuts to council services [that] are only likely to place pressure on other areas of public spending, such as the NHS, which are already in crisis.

Council resolves to:

 That the Leader should write to the Chancellor of the Exchequer, asking for a review of the Local Government Settlement, and that he should ask if the leader of the Conservative Group will co-sign

14.8 ADMINISTRATION MOTION IN THE NAME OF CLLR PAULINE COAKLEY-WEBB - BANNING PROFITEERING IN CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE AND EDUCATION PLACEMENTS

Votes on the motion in the name of Councillor Coakley-Webb were recorded as follows:

For: 39 Against:0 Abstain: 18 Absent: 6 Total: 63

The motion in the name of Councillor Coakley-Webb was CARRIED.

RESOLVED that:

Council notes that:

- In 2022 the Competition and Markets Authority's (CMA) final report on children's social care reiterated several important issues that Barnet Council has been raising with the Conservative government for many years, specifically access to and costs of suitable placements for children in care, all while the largest providers make "materially higher profits".
- Their report shares our concern that "children are not consistently getting access to care and accommodation that meet their needs".

- Local authorities, as the sole purchasers of placements, pay thousands of pounds a week for placements for children in their care. Yet providers can pick and choose which referrals to accept and at what cost due to demand outstripping supply.
- The report rightly highlights the important role national government needs to play in contributing to these challenges being addressed.
- With concern regarding levels of risk in the system due to rapid changes in ownership and considerable levels of borrowing and debts held by some private companies. Should any of these providers fail, no single local authority could step in, and it would be children who suffer the greatest consequence. As the CMA notes, the current level of risk of disruption to children's accommodation and care is unacceptable.
- Children's services have long operated in a mixed economy with a range of providers involved in the delivery of services locally. However, multi-million pound mergers between providers are becoming increasingly common as is the use of private equity.
- Since the publication of the CMA no tangible action has been taken by Government to address profiteering in the children's sector.

Council agree:

- Profiteering using public money based on meeting children's needs is unacceptable.
- To the aspiration of a not-for-profit model for children's placements
- To call on all political parties to, nationally, within their manifestos for the upcoming general election, commit to the introduction of legislation which prevents for-profit operations or as a minimum, caps the level of fees chargeable in fostering and residential services.

14.9 ADMINISTRATION MOTION IN THE NAME OF CLLR GILL SARGEANT - CONGRATULATING MIDDLESEX UNIVERSITY ALUMNI ON WINNING UNIVERSITY CHALLENGE

Votes on the motion in the name of Councillor Sargeant were recorded as follows:

For: 56 Against: 0 Abstain: 1 Absent: 6 Total: 63

The motion in the name of Councillor Sargeant was CARRIED.

RESOLVED that:

Council Notes that:

•That Middlesex University Alumni won the most recent series of University Challenge.

- That to do so they defeated the University of Leeds, Bangor University and corpus Christi, Oxford, overwhelmingly 175 to 80.
- That the winning team consisted of David Heathcote, Lola Young, Heather Philipson and David Hepworth

Council Resolves to:

- To Congratulate the Middlesex University Alumni on its triumph, and restate how proud we are of Middlesex University for serving generations of students.
- That Middlesex University should be made aware of this motion.

15. REPORTS FROM EXECUTIVE & COUNCIL COMMITTEES

15.1 REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR FAMILY FRIENDLY BARNET - CORPORATE PARENTING ANNUAL REPORTS

The Worshipful the Mayor introduced the report. Councillor Coakley-Webb moved the reception and adoption of the recommendations in the report. Debate ensued.

On the recommendations on the report being put to the vote, the votes were as follows:

For: 57 Against: 0 Abstain: 1 Absent: 5 Total: 63

RESOLVED that Council:

Notes the report to ensure understanding of their statutory role as corporate parents and to be aware of progress and challenges for services to children in our care and care experienced young adults.

16. REPORTS OF OFFICERS

16.1 REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY & RESOURCES - OUTTURN, QUARTER 1 & MID YEAR TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY & PERFORMANCE UPDATE 2023-24

The Head of Governance introduced the report asking Council to note the report, the treasury activity and performance updates against the prudential indicators and to approve an increase to the council's Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit for External Debt to £1,259m to reflect the council's current expectations around use of reserves over 2023-24 and capital expenditure requiring prudential borrowing.

On the recommendations in the report being put to the vote, the votes were recorded as follows:

For: 39 Against: 18 Abstain: 1 Absent: 5 Total: 63

RESOLVED that Council:

- 1. Note the report, the treasury activity and performance updates against the Prudential Indicators.
- 2. Approve an increase to the council's Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit for External Debt to £1,259m to reflect the council's current expectations around use of reserves over 2023-24 and capital expenditure requiring prudential borrowing.

16.2 REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EARLY HELP & CHILDRENS SOCIAL CARE - YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 2023-25

The Head of Governance introduced the report asking Council to approve the Youth Justice Plan in Appendix 1 for the years 2023/24 and 2024/25.

On the recommendations in the report being put to the vote, the votes were recorded as follows:

For: 56 Against: 0 Abstain: 1 Absent: 6 Total: 63

RESOLVED that Council:

Approve the Youth Justice Plan in Appendix 1 for the years 2023/24 and 2024/25.

16.3 REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF ASSURANCE - REVISED GAMBLING STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES

The Head of Governance introduced the report which asked for Council to approve the revised Gambling Statement of Principles 2024.

On the recommendations in the report being put to the vote, the votes were recorded as follows:

For: 57 Against: 0 Abstain: 1 Absent: 5 Total: 63

RESOLVED that Council:

Approve the revised Gambling Statement of Principles 2024.

16.4 REPORT OF THE HEAD OF GOVERNANCE

The Head of Governance introduced the report, outlining the various administrative matters for Council's agreement.

On the recommendations in the report being put to the vote, the votes were recorded as follows:

Appendix A:

For: 56 Against: 0 Abstain: 1 Absent: 6 Total: 63

Appendix B:

For: 39 Against: 0 Abstain: 18 Absent: 6 Total: 63

Appendix C:

For: 39 Against: 0 Abstain: 18 Absent: 6 Total: 63

Appendix D:

For: 57 Against: 0 Abstain: 1 Absent: 6 Total: 63

Appendix E:

For: 57 Against: 0 Abstain: 1 Absent: 6 Total: 63

Appendix G:

For: 57 Against: 0 Abstain: 1 Absent: 6 Total: 63

RESOLVED that Council:

- 1. That Council approve the change to committee appointments in Appendix A.
- 2. That Council approve the appointment to an Outside Body in Appendix B.
- 3. That Council approve the appointment of Advisers to the Adults & Health Overview & Scrutiny Sub-Committee in Appendix C.
- 4. That Council approve the officer appointment to the Pan London Vehicle for Children's Complex Commissioning Ltd (PLV) in Appendix D.
- 5. That Council note and approve Appendix E (Calendar of Meetings for 2024/25) and including the revisions to previously agreed dates in the period May to July 2024.
- 6. That Council approve the designation of Ms Jyotika Dabasia as the Chief Finance Officer for the period 8th February to 26th February 2024 and Mr Kevin Bartle as the Chief Finance Officer from 27th February 2024 for a period of up to a year.
- 7. That Council agree the changes to additional committee appointments as outlined in the table in Appendix G.

16.5 REPORT OF THE HEAD OF GOVERNANCE - CALCULATION OF POLITICAL BALANCE (PROPORTIONALITY)

The Head of Governance introduced the report, noting the political balance of the Council now being:

- 40 members of the Labour Group
- 21 members of the Conservative Group
- 2 Independent members

Council were also asked to agree to the allocation of seats as set out in the tables in Appendix A in order to comply with the political balance regulations requiring seats to be allocated proportionately to the political groups on Council.

Council were also asked to note that the number of seats for the Strategic Planning Committee as been reduced from 10 to 9 seats (6 being Administration seats and 3 being Opposition seats) to achieve political balance overall.

On the recommendations in the report being put to the vote, the votes were recorded as follows:

For: 56 Against: 0 Abstain: 1 Absent: 6 Total: 63

RESOLVED that:

- 1. That Council note the political balance of the Council is:
- **➤ 40 Members of the Labour Group**
- ➤ 21 Members of the Conservative Group
- **➤ 2 Independent Members**
- 2. Council agree the allocation of seats as set out in the tables in Appendix A in order to comply with the political balance regulations requiring seats to be allocated proportionately to the political groups on Council.

17. MOTION TO EXCLUDE THE PRESS & PUBLIC

Council moved a motion to exclude the press and public on the basis that the exempt items will involve discussion of confidential information. The public gallery was cleared.

18. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE - SEVERANCE PAYMENT

The Head of Governance introduced the report, outlining the recommendations as set out in the exempt report.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18.5 (Recorded Vote by Division). 10 Members present at the meeting demanded a recorded vote on this decision.

Councillor			For	Against	Not Voting	Absent
1	Ernest	AMBE	X		1	
2	Richard	BARNES	X			
3	Zahra	BEG	X			
4	Andrea	BILBOW	X			
5	Rishikesh	CHAKRABORTY	Х			
6	Anne	CLARKE	X			
7	Pauline	COAKLEY WEBB	Х			
8	Dean	COHEN				Х
9	Philip	COHEN	Х			
10	Joshua	CONWAY		X		
11	Sara	CONWAY	Х			
12	Geof	COOKE	X			
13	Alison	CORNELIUS		Х		
14	Richard	CORNELIUS		Х		
15	Edith	DAVID	X			
16	Val	DUSCHINSKY		X		
17	Paul	EDWARDS	X			
18	Claire	FARRIER	Х			
19	Shuey	GORDON		Х		
20	Eva	GREENSPAN		Х		
21	Jennifer	GROCOCK		Х		

22	Rohit	GROVER	1 1	Χ	1	
23	Kamal	GURUNG	Х			
24	Lachhya	GURUNG		Х		
25	Marianne	HAYLETT	X			
26	Ross	HOUSTON	X			
27	Anne	HUTTON	X			
28	Giulia	INNOCENTI	X			
29	Andreas	IOANNIDIS	X			
30	Laithe	JAJEH				Х
31	Humayune	KHALICK	X			
32	Paul	LEMON	X			
33	David	LONGSTAFF		Χ		
34	Linda	LUSINGU				Х
35	Kath	MCGUIRK	X			
36	Nick	MEARING-SMITH		Х		
37	Michael	MIRE				Х
38	Arjun	MITTRA	X			
39	Giulia	MONASTERIO	X			
40	Alison	MOORE	Х			
41	Ammar	NAQVI	X			
42	Matthew	PERLBERG	X			
43	Alex	PRAGER		Х		
44	Simon	RADFORD	Х			
45	Barry	RAWLINGS	X			
46	Danny	RICH	Х			
47	Tim	ROBERTS	X			
48	Ella	ROSE	Х			
49	Gill	SARGEANT	X			
50	Alan	SCHNEIDERMAN	X			
51	Mark	SHOOTER		Х		
52	Elliot	SIMBERG				Х
53	Caroline	STOCK		Х		
54	Daniel	THOMAS		Х		
55	Liron	VELLEMAN-	X			
		WOODCOCK				
56	Lucy	WAKELEY		X		
57	Sarah	WARDLE				Х
58	Emma	WHYSALL	X			
59	Nigel	YOUNG	X			
60	Peter	ZINKIN		Х		
61	Zakia	ZUBAIRI	Х			
62	Deputy Mayor Tony	VOUROU	Х			
63	Deputy	NARENTHIRA			X	
	Mayor Nagus					
	Tivayus	I Total	39	17	1	6
		างเลา	39	17	1	ן ט

RESOLVED that Council approve the recommendations set out in the exempt report.

The meeting finished at 9.14pm